FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
8/23/2021
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

100114-2

IN THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON

In re } FROM APPEALS COURT #817531 }



WILMINGTON SAVINGS AND FOR SANWICH SAVINGS AND LOAN or SABR MORTGAGE LOAN 2008-1 REO SUBSIDIARTY-1LLC LOAN FSB ACTING AS TRUSTEE } KING COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT CASE #14-2-26804} PLAINTIFF V

V. BRUCE BORJESSON

APPEAL OF CASE BEFORE THE APPEALS COURT

#817-531

BY BRUCE R BORJESSON 9519 4TH NW SEATTLE WASHINGTON 98117 PHONE 2067658977 OR pacres `13@gmail.com

Requesting a Discretionary Review by the Washington State Supreme Court

ON AUGUST 19 2021

I. INTRODUCTION

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Arnold v. Melani, 75 Wn.2d 143, 148, 449 P.2d 800, 450 P.2d 815 (1968). It is error by the Superior Courts ruling in this Summary Judgement without convincing evidences Pg 2

Lopp v. Peninsula Sch. Dist. No. 401, 90 Wn.2d 754, 759, 585 P.2d 801 (1978) Pg 2

Stewart v. Johnston, 30 Wn.2d 925, 935-36, 195 P.2d 119 (1948). RCW 9A.72.085 unsworn statements, certification Accountability Pg 2-3

Rainer View Court Homeowners Ass's Inc Vs. Zenker, 157 Wn App. 710, 719, 238 P.3d 1217 (2010) PG35/46

2012 Washington State Supreme Court Ruling Bain Vs. Metropolitan Mortgage Group INC FSB PG 6

Talbot Vs Jansen, 3 US (3 Dall.) 133, 158 (1795)

Defense well settled in Cathcart V Robinson, 30 US (5 Pet) 264, 276 (1831)

Brown vs the Dept of Commerce 184 Wn 2nd 509.

 $P_{\mathcal{G}}$

. In Bain V Metro Mortgage Wn Supreme Court Case 2012

Pa 4,6

US District Bankruptcy Case #15-16110 per Honorable Christopher M Alston. Bartlett V Northern Pac. Ry. 74 Wash Dec. 2nd 886, 447 P2 nd 735 (1968), Mills V Interisland Tel. Co. INC. 68 Wn. 2nd 820 416, P 2nd 115 (1966), McCollough V E.I> dupont de Nemours and CO., 68 Wn 2nd 127,411 P 2nd 894 (1966) Peterson V Peterson, 66 Wn. 2nd 120, 401 P. 2nd 343 (1965), Slemmons V Shotwell64 Wn 2nd 595, 392 P 2nd 1007 (1964), Haney V Radio Corp of America 62 Wn 2nd 390 P 2nd 980 (1964), Foote V Hayes 64 P 2nd 277 P 2nd 551 (1964), Jorgensen V Massart, 61 Wn. 2nd 491, 378 P 2nd 941 (1963), Hasse V Helgeson 57 Wn. 2nd 863, 360 P 2nd 339(1961), Brannon v Harmon 56 Wn 2nd 826, 355 P 2nd (1960) Palmer V Waterman Steamship Co., 52 Wn

State V Campbell 103 Wa 2nd, 1, 691 P 2nd 929 941) (1984). 2nd 604,, 328 P 2nd 169 (1958) Pg 4 Hughes V Chehalis School District No 302, 61 Wn 2nd 222, 377 P 2nd642 (1963). and Legal authorities of RAP 13.4 (b). forfeit borrowers' interests and the lack of judicial oversight in conducting non judicial foreclosure sales." Udall v. T.D. Escrow Servs., Inc., 159 Wash.2d 903, 915–16, 154 P.3d 882 (2007) (citing Queen City Sav. & Loan Ass'n v. Mannhalt, 111 Wash.2d 503, 514, 760 P.2d 350 (1988) (Dore, J., dissenting)). Peoples Nat'l Bank of Wash. v. Ostrander, 6 Wash. App. 28, 491 P.2d 1058 (1971)). Wn Supreme Court Pg 8

Cox v. Helenius, 103 Wash.2d 383, 389, 693 P.2d 683 (1985) (citing George E. Osborne, Grant S. Nelson & Dale A. Whitman, Real Estate Finance Law § 7.21 (1979) ("[A]

Cox V Helenius, 103 Wash.2d at 387, 693 P.2d 683 (citing Joseph L. Hoffmann, Comment, Court Actions Contesting the Non-judicial Foreclosure of Deeds of Trust in Washington, 59 Wash. L.Rev. 323, 330 (1984)PG9-10. See also Christian v. Tohmeh 191 Wash.App. 709, 386 P.3d 16

(2015), Colwell v. Holy Family Hosp .. 104 Wash. App. 606, 15 P.2d 210(2001), abrogated on other grounds by Fransto v. Yakima HMA LLC. 188 Wash. 2d 227, 393 P3d 776 (2017), Smith v. Shannon. 100 Wash2d. 26, 666 P. 2d 351 (1983) (informed consent). Wagner v. Flightcraft. Inc., 31 Wash App. 558, 643 P. 2d 906 (1982). (airplane crash) Randolph v. Collectromatic, Inc.. 590 F. 2d 844 (10 fw Cir. 1979) (product defects). Ambin v. Barton. 123 Wash. App. 592, 98 P. 3d

125 (2004) (legal malpractice). Raff v. County of King. 125 Wash. 2d 697, 887 P. 2d 886 (1995) (defective roadway). Farm Corp Energy. Inc. v.Old Nat. Bank of Washington. 109 Wash. 2d 923, 750 P. 2d 231 (1988)(lost profits). Mattson v. Carlisle Packing Co., 123 Wash. 243,212 P. 2d179 (1923) (safe use of a ladder)

Pg 12

Rue v. Oregon W.O. Co.. 109 Wash. 436, 186 P. 1074 (1920), and Bachelor v. Madison Park Corporation. 25 Wash.2d 907, 172 P. 268 (1946),

PG12

Federal Court under 11 US Code \554 (b) "is of inconsequential value"

PG

US Federal District Bankruptcy Court Case #\15-16110

PG 6

Washington State RCWs

RCW:7.90.053, RCW 26.50.123 (service by mail), RCW 9A.72.085, and CR 5 (service and filing of Pleadings and other papers (motions) and CR.56(c)

PG6

RCW 61.30.010 Real Estate Contract

RCW 4.16.040 Statute of Limitations

Pg15

RCW 61.030.080 1-3 Service Notices Failures

Pg 4

Trustees have obligations to all of the parties to the deed, including the homeowner. RCW 61.24.010(4) (
"The trustee or successor trustee has a duty of good faith to the borrower, beneficiary, and grantor."); RCW 61.030.150 False Swearing (with penalties) PG9

. RCW 61.24.030(7)(a), (8)(1).

PG9

Id. at 260-61, 73 P. 533; RCW 61.24.020; RCW 61.12.090; RCW 7.28.230(1). PG 8

RCW 4.04 Common Law

Rules of Evidence: 401-404

ROE 601-604

ROE.901-904 Authentication of or Identification of evidences, documents and proof of records having been Made

WAC 208-640-540

RCW 58.17.11 (1)(2); 58.17.150, 58.17.033, 58.17.110 APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL OF SUBDIVISION/DEDICATION.FACTORS

RCW:7.90.053, No Service delivery

Pg 6

RCW 26.50.123 (service by mail),

Pg 6

RCW 9A.72.085, RCW 9A.72.085 unsworn statements, certification Accountability P. 58.17.255

Pg 6/ RCW PG 12

II. WASHINGTON STATE CIVIL RULES

CR 56,(a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(f)(g) (h) No Service filings made)

Pg

(C)(1)	2.5(A)(1-3) CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH MAY AI	TECT COOTE OF	Pg	
WASHING	GTON STATE RULES OF APPELATE PROCEI	OURE	•	
III. IV.	RAP 2.5 (1-3) RAP 7.2		Pg Pg	
V. VI. VII. VIII.	RAP 9.10 RAP 9.12 (special rule for order on Summary Judg RAP 10 3 (A)(4) RAP 13.4 (b)	gement)	PG PG Pg Pg 5,8	
	WASHINGTON STATE SUPERIOR COU	RT ORDERS		
Lo	r.4(K) ORDER REQUIRING COMPLETION O	F JOINT CONFII	RMATION OF TRIAL	
CI	² 248-250) Court Order		PG2	
CP 1-500 C	Certified Papers in entirety		Pg	
CP 1-11				
CP 13 14 C	Changing of Real Estate Contract and Closing date of	of Equifirst Bank.		
CP 1-50 Absence of Required Documentation by Plaintiffs, no delivery of Certifications of Service or Servicers as required in all Summary Judgment case. Pg 5				
RP 22		PG 1	5	
CP 140 M	r.Borjessons stipulations by counsel for evidences (RAP 9.12}	Pg	
CP 159 Ch	icago title Legal Description of Parcel A only		PG 2CP 213	
	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure	Pg54		
Motion to		Pg54	PG 5 14	
Motion to	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure	Pg54		
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure			
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173 CP 253-254	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure O Court Order	PG-14	!	
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173 CP 253-254 CP 36 Write	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure O Court Order Summary Judgment Decree	PG-14 Pg 5 p verification	Pg 5	
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173 CP 253-254 CP 36 Write CP-1-11or	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure O Court Order Summary Judgment Decree ten survey shows lot size No plat maps for Plat may	PG 14 Pg 5 p verification otions)	Pg 5 Pg 2	
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173 CP 253-254 CP 36 Write CP-1-11or CP 14 Date	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure O Court Order Summary Judgment Decree Iten survey shows lot size No plat maps for Plat maps So Service filings of Pleadings and other papers Mo	PG 14 Pg 5 p verification otions)	Pg 5 Pg 2 Pg 6	
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173 CP 253-254 CP 36 Write CP-1-11or CP 14 Dat CP 1-50 Ex	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure O Court Order Summary Judgment Decree ten survey shows lot size No plat maps for Plat maps So Service filings of Pleadings and other papers Mote if February 28 2009 Closing of Equi First Bank 20	PG 14 Pg 5 p verification otions)	Pg 5 Pg 2 Pg 6 Pg	
Motion to 3 CP 248-250 CP 173 CP 253-254 CP 36 Write CP-1-11or CP 14 Dat CP 1-50 Ex US District	Strike and Motion to Dismiss foreclosure O Court Order Summary Judgment Decree ten survey shows lot size No plat maps for Plat may So Service filings of Pleadings and other papers Mote if February 28 2009 Closing of Equi First Bank 20 vents inclusive of Service filings not made	PG-14 Pg 5 p verification otions) 009 IA Pg 2	Pg 5 Pg 2 Pg 6 Pg Pg 1	

RP 21 no real estate contract correlation/MERS	Pg		
RP 22 Court says it cannot say about Plaintiffs other "defects" Pg			
RP 1-25 Incomplete and unavailable production of Loan servicer full 11 years of Where's the Money? Pg	accounting	docume	ntation
CP 33 Real Estate Contract		Pg 3	
CP 36 Chicago titl Original Property Description of Parcel A without Plat Maps			
CP 173-210 Motions to Strike and Motions to Dismiss and Deny	Pg 2		
CP 173 /174-175 Statement of Facts and Authorities		Pg 20	
CP 178 Real Estate Contract and lack of Relinquishments by anyone		Pg 3	
CP 140 motion for stipulation by Counsel (RAP 9.12)		Pg 28	
CP 187-189 Doctrine of unclean hands/ with Laches/Laches estoppel	Pg 22		
CP 207-209 Signature of Now Closed Loan Servicer(s) President.			
CP 248-250 Order for Joint report of status before Trial{filed but not delivered to Pg10/13/19/29	to defendan	it	
CP 377-378 Plaintiff misrepresents without proper documentation Ownership of full lot is available	f Property a	s equity l Pg11	out no
ASSIGNMENTMENT OF ERRORS NO SURVEY PLAT MAP	Pg		
ASSIGNMENT EIGHT OF ERRORS (NO ORDER RECEIVED NOR COM	IPLIED	PG 6	
ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS	PG 9		
ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS NOFINDINGS OF FACT NOR PROPER C	ONCLUSI	ONS OF	LAW
ASSIGMENT OF ERRORS MISSED ANALYSIS OF LOT A WITHOUT	'PLAT MA	P	PG-5
ASSIGNMENTMENT OF ERRORS ORDERS BY SUPERIOR COURT {C	P 248-250)	Pg	
ASSIGNMENTMENT OF ERRORS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT		Pg 4	
ASSIGNMENTMENT OF ERRORS RP 22 STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS		Pg	

IN THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON

In re } FROM APPEALS COURT #	817531 }	
WILMINGTON SAVINGS AND FO LOAN 2008-1 REO SUBSIDIARTY-1 KING COUNTY SUPERIO		TRUSTEE }
PLAINTIFF V	}	
V. BRUCE BORJESSON	}	

BRIEF FOR SUPREME COURT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW IN APPEALS COURT APPEAL OF SUMMARY JUDGEMENT AND FORECLOSURE CASE

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, Bruce Borjesson, Pro Se operating on his own behalf. This Appeal matter having as available for Discretionary Review before the above entitled court. May the Washington State Supreme Court be noticed that the following is All Events, & sequential events that following the CP or RP, and legal events are inclusive.

INTRODUCTION:

This introduction begins at the beginning. Mr. Borjesson in 2007 August obtained a mortgage forced out of the Inheritance of the property located at 9519 4th NW Seattle Washington, Parcels A and B from Major James J Harris. Mr. Borjesson had spent 26 years taking care of Major Harris as he was a Parkinson's victim, and victim of accident while on duty USAF. He was permanently disabled until his untimely demise at a rest home.

The question of judicial Truth and relevance has now again occurred in this Case. If there is no De Novo review and De Novo either acceptance or rebuttal there is no relevance having a de novo review being in this case being allegedly created by examination or review By the Appeals Court. The case requires not only close examination and open declarations by the Division One Appeals Court but now will require close judicial examinations and Judicial correlations with the actual facts of the case. This was not done either during the first Summary Judgment hearing (note NO TRIAL) That this indicates a partial Doumentation. That even

the Appeals Court makes notice of there was a Trial. There was NEVER any Trial. In fact just prior to the Summary Judgment Hearing on October 2 2015, on September 28 the Court gave exacting instructions to both Plaintiffs, and Mr. Borjesson(defendant) in an Order Requiring Completion of Joint Confirmation of Trial Readiness: discovery by Plaintiff)@CP 248-250 thus demanding discovery by both Plaintiff and Defendant. This Court Order was never delivered by the Court to Mr. Borjesson. In fact the order Order Requiring Completion of Joint Confirmation of Trial Readiness At no time during the Summary Judgment hearing was there any mention by the Court of this Order:} CP 248-250 See also Arnold v. Melani, 75

Wn. 2d 143, 148, 449 P. 2d 800, 450 P. 2d 815 (1968). It is error by the Superior Courts ruling in this Summary Judgement without convincing unsworn statements, certification Accountability and evidences

Lopp v. Peninsula Sch. Dist. No. 401, 90 Wn. 2d 754, 759, 585 P. 2d 801 (1978)

Stewart v. Johnston, 30 Wn.2d 925, 935-36, 195 P.2d 119 (1948). RCW 9A.72.085 It was only known by the Defendant on/until January 1 2021. this was after the long US District Bankruptcy Court#15-16110-CMA before the Honorable Christopher M Alston. There is the issue of the Property being divided into Parcel A And Parcel B. Parcel A (king county parcel #0081) being a small parcel measuring by official filings as a "35.35 ft by 65 ft. parcel" Anyone of certified real estate understanding that this is not only undersized parcel but cannot be a legal Subdivision by both King County, Dept of Land Use (city of seattle)see exhibit B and by the Washington state subdivision standards. This was formally noticed during the US Bankruptcy Court before the Honorable Christopher M Alston in Case #15-16110 CMA. The property aka Parcel B was and could never be included as a part of the foreclosure action by the Plaintiffs. That the Plaintiffs are now attempting to foreclose on Parcel B is further violations of Washington State law. The alleged Plaintiffs lender is only entitled to foreclose and take title to the property that was offered as collateral. If the actual house sits on property that was officially not offered as collateral the Plaintiff cannot take nor seize the property.@CP159 This alleged lender and the Summary Judgment hearing court in effect was trying to effect an unlawful or partition of the Property (9519 4th NW. Now the Plaintiff is Currently in this action the Plaintiffs are attempting to create an unlawful subdivision or partitition of Mr. Borjesson properties illegitimately claiming that the Parcel A holds the WHOLE house as on Parcel A. The Plaintiffs are

misinforming the court with slipping a "SUMMARY JUDGMENT" now decreed, with misinformed documentation or lack of documentation in both Superior Court and now the Appeals Courts. (The Appeals Court Commissioner Masako Kanazawa on April 19 2021 ruled or allowed the actual Certified Survey and accompanying DPD City of Seattle "situation of existing building" being perched on the Defendants Parcel B (King County Parcel #0085)} which cannot be foreclosed upon by the Plaintiffs. Nor can any Court completely legitimize an unlawful or illegal subdivision. The Supreme Court has ruled in the following cases in which it was concluded that the existence of genuine issues of material fact precluded the grant of summary Judgment: Bartlett V.Northern Pac. Ry. 74 Wash Dec. 2nd 886, 447 P2 nd 735 (1968), Mills V Interisland Tel. Co. INC. 68 Wn. 2nd 820 416, P 2nd 115 (1966), McCollough V E.I> dupont de Nemours and CO., 68 Wn 2nd 127,411 P 2nd 894 (1966) Peterson V Peterson, 66 Wn. 2nd 120, 401 P. 2nd 343 (1965), Slemmons V Shotwell64 Wn 2nd 595, 392 P 2nd 1007 (1964), Haney V Radio Corp of America 62 Wn 2nd 390 P 2nd 980 (1964), Foote V Hayes 64 P 2nd 277 P 2nd 551 (1964), Jorgensen <u>V Massart, 61 Wn. 2nd 491, 378 P 2nd 941 (1963), Hasse V Helgeson 57 Wn. 2nd 863 , 360 P 2nd</u> <u>339(1961), Brannon v Harmon 56 Wn 2nd 826, 355 P 2nd (1960) Palmer V Waterman Steamship Co.,</u> 52 Wn 2nd 604., 328 P 2nd 169 (1958) that when such a judicial conflict has occurred as in Mr. Borjesson (Defendants) case the case Now before the Washington Supreme Court requires Reverse, Remand and Review. Such conflicts as are required to be resolved is by RAP 13.4(b), herein now invoked.

That it has been created by either the Superior Courts Summary Judgment @CP253-254, no that the follow up by Appeals Court that the Superior Court did not take under its Review or examinations that such an unlawful subdivision of single family residences necessarily raises an issue of substantial public interest within the terms of RAP 13.4(b). The possible ruling of which by the Supreme Court will resolve the Issues.

Argument regarding both no de novo review by the Appeals Court:

The Appeals court by claiming that there is nothing to review has caused the Judicial Contradictions about the placement of the , SABR WILMINGTON SAVINGS AND FOR SANWICH SAVINGS

AND LOAN or SABR MORTGAGE LOAN 2008-1 REO SUBSIDIARTY-1LLC LOAN FSB ACTING AS TRUSTEE foreclosure action and the True facts such as the Issues of what is the foreclosure complaint judicial flaws of certified surveys not matching the realities what has been falsely collateralized by the Plaintiffs. The Appeals Court cannot have it both ways. Claiming that the Summary Judgment is being properly executed contradicts the actual Truth that both the Superior Court and now the Appeals Court have chosen to ignore. So is the truth and relevancy of facts having any place now before the Supreme Court is herein shown below. Then there is the issue of Pausing the Statute of Limitations, or Pausing the certifications of legal surveys of property and DPD quantifications of Land Use, and Pausing of the Commissioner's ruling on the Acceptances of Certifications of Legal Surveys (visual verifications not just numbers on a page not understood by unqualified Jurists. How about the Pausing of the reading and realizations legally speaking of De Novo review. Is this just another type of Judicial legislation?

Let us examine the issues of Bain V Metro Mortgage LLC. In that now famous MERS issue being resolved that MERS cannot be either the owner, the beneficiary nor the extension legally of the beneficiary one issue is Still at issue. There has always been the actual certified legal transfer of ownership, the actual ownership and then the receipt of the promissory note as no longer being at issue. This was never settled by Bain V Metro Mortgage. MERS disreputable behavior was finally settled. NOT who got what, nor WHO is the certified documented ownership documentations by legititmate transfers of custody (of genuine authentic documents) and how it was legitimately transferred. Same condition herein: as existed at the relevant time then a "Chain of Custody of documentation" must be established *State V Campbell 103 Wa 2nd s. 1. 691 P 2nd 929 941) (1984)*. At no time in the 12 years 4 groups of lawyers, 3 loan servicers and 5 alleged owner transfers has any chain or chains of transfers of documentations between anyone: has not been done. Then we have the Issue of the King County Superior Court issuing an order as a pretrial order CP 248-250. There has never been a trial. There is even the Appeals Court saying that a Trial was done by the Superior court. There never was a trial. There was a Summary Judgement Hearing in part. The violations of

Judicial Canons are various and numerous. The Lack of clarity, false claim in the Summary Judgment hearing by the Court of "No Motion before the Court to Strike, CP(213 & CP 173-210) and the Motion to Dismissal of Plaintiffs Foreclosure Complaints were both never reviewed and subsequently never denied other than the honorable mention that the "court had no motion to strike before it"CP (213)RP 20. When the Motion to Strike had been entered CP 213. This along with the CP 248-250 Order for Judicial Discovery show a lack of interest in anything except to pass All the Issues Summary Judgment on to the Appeals Court. Why did the Superior court issue on Sept 28 2015 the Order for Judicial Discovery Order Requiring Completion of Joint Confitmation of Trial Readiness (CP 248-250) then did not send this Order to the Defendant, in a judicially necessary timing, with the Summary Judgment hearing already scheduled for 3 days later Oct 2, 2015? Something very judicially off here. There was never any Trial. This is a further violation by both the Superior Courts on going "ready for trial" on more than three cases if the case actually had been reviewed (by either the Superior Court and Now the Appeals Court).

Because the issue of Pro Se being brought up by both the Courts it should now become a due process issue. Mr. Borjesson is a sovereign native American and deserves to not be discriminated against again, and again. The violations of Mr. Borjesson due process 4th and 14th US and Washington State Constitutional rights to being dealt with fairly implies that the facts need to be addressed not covered up. Not Ignored. The judicial lack of judicial microscopic examination of the details of this case is truly astounding.

On Page 12 of Plaintiffs first Reply rebuttal: Mr. Borjesson denies repeatedly never having received the official notice of Motion for Summary Judgment. May the Court note that the Plaintiff's did not file a denial of the facts entered by Mr. Borjesson that at CP 1-50 (in his Brief to the appeals Court) THEREFORE under Hughes V Chehalis School District No 302, 61 Wn 2nd 222, 377 P 2nd 642 (1963) . and Legal authorities of RCW 4.28.080 (15(16)(17)) when there is no legitimate notice, filing with the courts of these legal notices of Summary Judgement nor listing in any King County Records of Summary Judgement Filings that therefore

the Court did not perform its due diligence prior to the Summary Judgment hearing as required By (rule 56 and RCW). Argument The Appeals Court has not reviewed nor included a rebuttal by the Appeals Court of all of the Defendants issues as is the normal Judicial De Novo Reviews. Under the Issues of Facts and facts in dispute: the Cases in which it was concluded that the existence of genuine issues of material fact precluded the grant of summary Judgment: Bartlett V. Northern Pac. Ry. 74 Wash Dec. 2nd 886, 447 P2 nd 735 (1968), Mills V Interisland Tel. Co. INC. 68 Wn. 2nd 820 416, P 2nd 115 (1966), McCollough V E.I> dupont de Nemours and CO., 68 Wn 2nd 127,411 P 2nd 894 (1966) Peterson V Peterson, 66 Wn. 2nd 120, 401 P. 2nd 343 (1965), Slemmons V Shotwell64 Wn 2nd 595, 392 P 2nd 1007 (1964), Haney V Radio Corp of America 62 Wn 2nd 390 P 2nd 980 (1964), Foote V Hayes 64 P 2nd 277 P 2nd 551 (1964), Jorgensen V Massart, 61 Wn. 2nd 491, 378 P 2nd 941 (1963), Hasse V Helgeson 57 Wn. 2nd 863, 360 P 2nd 339(1961), Brannon v Harmon 56 Wn 2nd 826, 355 P 2nd (1960) Palmer V Waterman Steamship Co., 52 Wn 2nd 604.. 328 P 2nd 169 (1958) That up until this current brief and reply rebuttals (3) and at no time during any of the total of the CP 1-500 were any proper filings, delivery of Summary Judgment Documents, nor Affidavits of delivery of documents given by the Plaintiff. In this regard now the Plaintiffs by not denying that the Plaintiffs did not do properly certified deliveries nor Sheriffs delivery of the aforesaid Summary Judgment documents required by RCW 7.90.053; 26.50.123) 9service by mail); 9A. 72. 085, and CR 5 service and filings of Pleadings and other papers (motions) and CR 56 (c)... That Mr. Borjesson did not receive in a timely manner is also signified and now NOT denied that it was NOT delivered by the Plaintiffs shows error on the part of the Superior Court. And Now compounded by Appeals Court's affirmation. How can the Appeals Court deny the existence of and the required applications of the above documentations.? That this is just the beginning of the necessity of a Discretionary Review as now requested by the Defendant Mr Boriesson. Where is the Money?

The Federal Court Us District Bankruptcy Court Under the Honorable Christopher M Alston, Mr. Borjesson case #-15-16110 Abandoned the land and property and house as there was no Monetary value. After 111 plus realtors in a hot realty market there were NO offers. The reality of how the Pipestern property (see attached Certified Survey accepted by the Appeals Court Exhibit s A>B>C), and the fact that no Title insurance can

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