# FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 10/8/2021 1:07 PM BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

NO. 100114-2

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON

### **BRUCE BORJESSON**

Appellants/Petitioner,

v.

# WILMINGTON SAVINGS FUND SOCIETY, FSB AS TRUSTEE OF STANWICH MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST A

Respondent.

# RESPONSE TO MOTION TO EXTEND TIME AND ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Synova M. L. Edwards, WSBA #43063

Wright Finlay & Zak, LLP 612 S. Lucile St., Suite 300 Seattle, WA 98108 Phone: (206) 946-8109

Fax: (949) 608-9142

Email: smledwards@wrightlegal.net

Attorney for Respondent

Wilmington Savings Fund Society,

FSB as trustee of Stanwich Mortgage

Loan Trust A

# **

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

# V.ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

After the Court of Appeals has entered its opinion, acceptance of review in this Court is discretionary. RAP 13.3(a). RAP 13.4(b) sets forth the standard by which this Court considers whether to accept review. Under RAP 13.4(b), review will only be accepted if: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court;

or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

# A. The Decision of the Court of Appeals is not in Conflict with a Decision of the Supreme Court.

Petitioner does not argue how the Court of Appeals decision is in conflict with a Supreme Court decision. Several of the cases cited by the Petitioner are not explained, and do not comport with the briefing. *See citations in* Voluntary Review Petition ("VRP") at 2, 4, and 7. While the Petitioner cites to several Supreme Court cases under the pretext of "the existence of genuine issues of material fact precluded the grant of summary Judgment" (VRP at 3), he provides no explanation or analysis that actually applies any of the cases cited to the situation presented by *this* case. Most importantly, the decision

from the Court of Appeals at issue here is *not* contrary to any of those decisions. The Court of Appeals confirmed the lower court's finding that there was no genuine issue of material fact: "Borjesson does not meet his burden demonstrating an issue of material fact requiring reversal." Op. at 4. Petitioner further cites to several cases related to standards relating to non-judicial foreclosures such as *Udall v. T.D. Escrow Services, Inc.* and *Cox v. Helenius*, however, as this was a judicial foreclosure, these cases are inapplicable. VRP at 9.

# B. The Decision of the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals.

Petitioner does not establish any conflict with any other decision of the Court of Appeals. While petitioner cites to a few other Court of Appeals opinions, he does not explain how this Court of Appeals' decision is in conflict with those to which he has cited. Petitioner identifies *Rinehold v. Renne* as a Supreme Court case, but the citation he provides, and the

subsequent quotation, is actually from the Court of Appeals case. Rinehold v. Renne, 2020 Wash. App. LEXIS 588, 2020 WL 1158088. Moreover, Rinehold addresses a boundary line issue, however, the alleged boundary line issue Petitioner seeks to raise in this case is not properly before this Court as it was never raised in the lower court, and the Court of Appeals properly declined to review it. "On April 14, 2021, Borjesson filed a motion for the submission of additional documents, in which Borjesson asks the court to consider exhibits A, B, C, and D attached to the motion. Under RAP 9.12, when reviewing an order granting or denying a motion for summary judgment we will consider only the evidence called to attention by the trial court. Therefore, we deny Borjesson's motion for the submission of additional documents." Op. at 4, fn. 2. Borjesson also cites to Peoples Nat'l Bank of Wash. V. Ostrander, for the premise that "an unlawful subdivision of single family residences necessarily raises an issue [of] substantial public interest", however his reliance is misplaced because *Peoples*  relates to the limited jurisdiction of an unlawful detainer action. *Peoples Nat'l Bank v. Ostrander*, 6 Wn. App. 28, 491 P.2d 1058, (1971).

# C. The Decision of the Court of Appeals does not involve a Significant Question of Law under either the U.S. or Washington Constitution.

Petitioner seems to argue that he was denied due process in contravention of the 4<sup>th</sup> and 14<sup>th</sup> Amendments of the United States Constitution and the Washington State Constitution. Petitioner contends that there is some defect in the manner in which the trial court conducted the summary judgment proceedings below. Specifically, he argues that the Court of Appeals should have accepted his assertions that he did not receive timely notice of the Motion for Summary Judgment and that he was unaware of a pretrial order. VRP at 6. However, these claims were not raised by Petitioner before the trial court.

As the Court of Appeals reasoned, "Borjesson argues about lack of notice, due process violations, discovery

violations, various fraud claims, lack of standing, statute of limitations, and raises a laches and unclean hands defense, all which are not properly before this court. Generally, we will not consider issues raised for the first time on appeal. RAP 2.5(a). Op. at 3, fn. 1. Petitioner also seems to expect special solicitude given his pro se status, but "the law does not distinguish between one who elects to conduct his or her own legal affairs and one who seeks assistance of counsel—both are subject to the same procedural and substantive laws." In re Marriage of Olsen, 69 Wn. App. 621, 626, 850 P.2d 527 (1993). However, he was granted additional time to file his opening brief, the opportunity to amend his opening brief, and the Court of Appeals allowed him to file additional documents related to the property lines, which were not before the lower court. They still did not suffice to warrant relief.

The charge by petitioner is that the trial court erred in granting summary judgment because he did not receive proper notice, but, first, he failed to raise this issue in the trial court,

and, second, he did receive proper notice as required by Washington Court Rule 5 and Washington Court Rule 56, which is notice by mail, postage prepaid, at least 28 days before the hearing. CP 118-119. Petitioner is just seeking to circumvent the rules, by relying on notice requirements under other, inapplicable statutes such as RCW 7.90 – Sexual Assault Protection Order Act, RCW 26.50 - Domestic Violence Prevention, and RCW 9A - the Washington Criminal Code, none of which apply here. As a result, Petitioner cannot establish that he was denied property without due process. In fact, belying his allegation that he did not get notice of the motion for summary judgment, shortly after the motion for summary judgment was filed, he filed his own Motion for Denial of Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. CP 173-190. Petitioner has thus had ample due process, and the petition for discretionary review on this basis should be denied.

# D. The decision of the Court of Appeals does not involve an issue of Substantial Public Interest that should be determined by the Court.

Petitioner argues that the issue he raised for the first time on appeal with related to the boundary lines of the property is a matter of substantial public interest that should be determined by the court. However, "[i]n determining whether a case presents an issue of continuing and substantial public interest, we consider (1) the public or private nature of the issue, (2) whether guidance for public officers on the issue is desirable, and (3) the likelihood that the issue will recur." State v. Ingram, 9 Wn. App. 2d 482, 490, 447 P.3d 192, 197, (2019). While this test is primarily applied to matters that become moot while on appeal, it can be applied here as well. This case does not present a public issue, rather it is an ordinary title issue related just to this specific property. Because the matter was not raised in the trial court, the Court of Appeals decision not to review the issue was appropriate under RAP 2.5(a), and there is an insufficient record for the Supreme Court to review to make any determination on the matter.

The petitioner alleges that "Commissioner Masako Kanazawa of the Appeals Court ruled in favor of the Defendant Mr. Borjesson with regards to the actual Certified Survey of the Parcel A..." VRP 7. However, upon review, this is simply a letter ruling allowing the Petitioner to file additional documents, it makes no ruling on, nor mention of, the validity of the documents proffered. At best, this issue relates to the neighboring property owners, not the public at large. It is of no moment to public officials, and while it is entirely possible that this issue would arise again, it is so factually specific that a determination from the Supreme Court would not aid anyone other than the petitioner. Accordingly, the petition for discretionary review on this basis should be denied.

# VI. REQUEST FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS

The Loan documents subject to this dispute contain attorney's fees provisions. CP 13-19, 21-40. Pursuant to RCW

4.84.330 in any action on a contract that provides for attorneys' fees and costs for the enforcement the provisions of the contract, the prevailing party is entitled to an award.

Even though the foreclosure sale has already been completed, Wilmington is still entitled to an award of fees and costs under the deed of trust. *Podbielancik v. LPP Mortg. Ltd.*, 191 Wash. App. 662, 673, 362 P.3d 1287, 1293 (2015). In the event of an affirmance, Wilmington is entitled to an award of attorney fees on appeal under those provisions.

# VII. CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing, Borjesson has not established any extraordinary circumstances that would warrant the Court granting him additional time for filing his petition. He also has not provided any viable reason as to why the petition for discretionary review should be accepted.

Accordingly, this Court should deny review in this matter, and should award Wilmington its attorney's fees and costs on this petition against Borjesson.

I hereby certify that this Answer to Petition for Review is 2,562 words in accordance with the requirements set forth in RAP 18.17.